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2.0 HERITAGE SETTING, SITE & CONTEXT 

Nos 11-13 Whiteladies Road is a 3 storey property with a basement that sits to the east side 
of Whiteladies Road (fig 2). The offices have two parts the Main Building to the front and the 
single storey Annex to the rear (fig 1). This application concerns the Annex only, which is 
Class E use.

The application site covers an area of 662sqm. The existing Annex to the application site are  
built against the boundary walls to the south and east.

The site sits within the Bristol Central Area Plan Boundary and within the Whiteladies Road 
Conservation Area. The site is not part of a designated shopping frontage.

The immediate area is characterised by the tree-lined street of Whiteladies Road, large period 
buildings, predominantly arranged as semi-detached properties (fig 4). The properties to the 
east side of Whiteladies Road have generous plot sizes including large front gardens many of 
which are now parking courtyards. The properties all vary in height, style and arrangement. 
However, they can be characterised by their attractive façades, many of which are finished 
with Bath Stone and painted timber sash windows. The side and rear elevations to the 
buildings are predominantly render.

Nos 11-13 Whiteladies Road was built between 1855 and 1874 as a pair of residential villas. 
This can be seen by comparing the two Ashmead maps to Section 3.0. By 1900 there is 
shown to be several structures on the land to the rear. It is known that many of these villas 
were converted to offices in the late 19th as Bristol expanded and the neighbouring property 
of no. 9 is labelled on this map as a bank. On the 1947-1965 OS National Grid plan the Annex 
is shown as being of a footprint to match the existing building. It is assumed by this time the 
site was no longer in residential use.

There are several listed buildings to the immediate locality (fig 3) including nos 7 & 9 
Whiteladies Road to the south (fig 4). Nos 7 & 9 are Grade II Listed buildings (Historic England 
reference number 1202690) and were listed in 1994.

The application site includes both the Annex and the rear parking courtyard. It is surrounded 
by high rubble stone walls and there are is no vegetation present (fig 1, 7, 8, 9 &10). The 
Annex cannot easily be seen from the wider Conservation Area with only a small glimpse 
between nos 11-13 & 7-9 Whiteladies Road (fig 5 & 6).

The rear gardens to the neighbouring properties have a variety of of modern structures 
including the 3 storey extension to the rear of 7-9 Whiteladies Road (fig 1), the 2 storey 
accommodation of Prince Rupert House to the rear of 15-19 Whiteladies Road (fig 10), and 
the single storey accommodation to the rear of 20 Elmdale Road (fig 7)

In 1989 consent was granted for the demolition of Annex and erection of a 4 storey office 
extension (fig 11), planning application reference 89/01364/L. This reflects arrangement of the 
neighbouring rear extension to nos. 7-9 Whiteladies Road (fig 1). However this consent was 
never implemented.

Subsequent to this in 1990 the Annex was refurnished and converted from a workshop to 
offices (planning application reference 90/02139/F). This was implemented.

In 2002 a first floor extension to the offices was consent (fig 12), planning application 
reference 02/022297/F. However, this was never implemented. 

We believe the rear Annex to nos. 11-13 Whiteladies Road being hidden from view does not 
form a key or influential building within the Conservation Area.
 Fig 4: The listed properties of nos. 7 & 9 Whiteladies Road to the right with nos. 11-13 

to the centre. Photograph taken March 2025

Fig 3: Local area with the nearby listed building shaded in purple and the site 
application boundary outlined in red (Know Your Place Bristol)
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Fig 11: Elevation drawing from consented application for demolition of Annex and erection of a 4 
storey office extension. Planning reference 89/01364/L. Never implemented

Fig 12: Elevation drawing form consented application for first floor extension to the Annex. Planning 
reference 02/02297/F/C. Never implemented
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Fig 17a: Photograph of the Annex from Whiteladies Road between nos 11-13 & 7-9

Fig 17b: Simple model showing the massing of the existing Annex

Fig 17b: Simple model showing the massing of the proposed mews houses
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6.0 HERITAGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

Nos. 11-13 Whiteladies Road, now in commercial use, was original built as a pair of semi 
detached residential properties in the Whiteladies Road Conservation Areas. The property has 
an existing single storey Annex to the rear courtyard.

The proposal is for the demolition of the existing Annex and erection of 4no. two storey 
serviced mews houses, Class C1. These would be managed and operated in conjunction with 
the serviced accommodation to the Main Building. It is also proposed the rear courtyard has 
its parking removed and is landscaped, to include small trees. The landscape courtyard would 
include bin, bike and maintenance storage for both the proposed mews houses and the Main 
Building.

There are existing modern developments to the rear of the properties fronting Whiteladies 
Road, which includes the adjacent two storey Prince Rupert House to the rear of no. 15  and 
the adjacent 3 storey office extension to the rear of nos. 7-9. We believe the massing and 
position of the proposal has been carefully considered and that the two storey properties will 
have a neutral impact both on the adjacent Listed Building and the wider Conservation Area.

We believe the proposed landscaping, which includes small trees, will have a positive impact 
on the wider Conservation Area, particularly when viewed from Tyndall’s Park Road (fig 5). 



